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315 S. 8th Street, south and west elevations (Christopher A. Bodych, May 2007) 
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WYOMING ARCITECTURAL INVENTORY FORM 
 
GENERAL INFORMATION 
 
Site Number: 115 
Project Name: Laramie’s University Neighborhood—Inventory of Historic Buildings 
 
Address: 319 S. 8th Street  
County: Albany  
Legal Location (lot, block, addition): Lot 8, Block 206, Original Town 
 
Current Name (if applicable): 
Historic Name (if applicable): 
 
Current Use: Single Family Home 
Historic Use: Single Family Home 
 
Name of Owner: Martha E. Lawlor  
Address of Owner: 319 South 8thStreet, Laramie, Wyoming 82070 
 
Form Prepared by: Annie Hilton 
Date of Survey: March 6, 2007 
 
HISTORICAL INFORMATION 
 
Date of Construction/major modification: c. 1887 (Knight)  
 
Architect/Builder: unknown 
 
Historical Background:  This house was built of local stone for Noah “Jack” Wallis, 
who was a rancher who also ran a furniture store among other enterprises. Mrs. Jane 
Wallis was listed as the owner in 1929.  In 1913-14 she had a boarder here, E.E. Baker, 
who was principal at the Laramie High School.  Jane’s daughter, Miss Martha Wallis, 
grew up in this house and gave much Wallis family furniture to the Laramie Plains 
Museum when she died in 1971.  In 1930, the owner was listed as Carl Williams, and in 
1940 it was owned by Louise A. Cox, a widow and a teacher at Whiting School. She 
lived in the home with two other women, Vera Steele, a public school art instructor, and 
Gertrude Bebber, a clerk at Gregg’s Specialty Shop.  
 
Major Bibliographic References: 
1941 Polk’s Laramie Directory 
Albany County Assessor’s Office, Property Record Card 
Knight, Judy, researcher for the Laramie Plains Museum. Notes compiled 2004. 
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ARCHITECTURAL INFORMATION  
 
Architectural style/type: Italianate 
  
Architectural Description: This two-story, rock-faced ashlar, sandstone house faces 
west on 8th Street and consists of a main, square block (27’ NS by 30’ EW) with a 
pyramidal hipped roof covered in asphalt shingles, and a gable-roofed ell extending 
approximately 20 feet to the east.  The house rests on a concrete foundation.  Windows 
and doors are trimmed in white-painted wood.  Red-brick chimneys rise from the north 
and south slopes of the roof. There is also an exterior chimney on the north elevation.   
 
The four-bay façade has a full-length wood portico supported by four square piers set on 
tall bases and topped with simple capitals.  The piers are connected by a low railing, and 
the flat roof of the portico is topped by a matching balustrade.  The portico is not original 
to the home; records indicate it was added in 1935. The entrance is offset to the north, in 
the second bay, and features an eight-panel wood door, topped by a transom, set within a 
wood arch.  There are three windows on the first story, two to the south and one to the 
north of the door.  The windows are replacement 1-over-1, double-hung, aluminum sash; 
however, the openings retain their Italianate-style form (tall and narrow), and segmental-
arched, sandstone voussoirs.  There are two matching windows symmetrically placed in 
the second story of the façade.  
 
The southern elevation features a rectangular bay window with a paired window in its  
south-facing elevation and single windows to the east and west.  There is a single window 
to the west of the bay window on the first story, and two windows symmetrically placed 
in the second story.  A gable-roofed, wood dormer projects from the south slope of the 
gable-roofed ell.   
 
Two major additions to the ell have compromised the historic character of the home. A 
greenhouse has been added on the south elevation of the ell, and a wood-framed 
mudroom extends to the east from the gable end of the ell.   

  
Ancillary structures:  
Back Barn (c. 1887): A clapboard-sided back barn (18’ NS by 30” EW) is located in the 
northeastern corner of the lot, facing south. The one-and-a-half-story barn has a front-
gable roof with the western slope extending to create an asymmetrical profile.  There are 
three garage bays in the south elevation; all have hinged wooden doors.  There is a 
haymow door in the gable end, and three similar small openings in the east elevation.  A 
concrete-block garage with door facing east has been appended to the north end of the 
barn.  The barn appears with the house on the 1894 Sanborn map. 
 
EVALUATION 
 
Physical Integrity: This property shows signs of age, such as cracks in the foundation, as 
well as repairs to the stone, but overall the sandstone construction has held up well. The 
concrete foundation appears to be relatively free of cracks. The front porch is in a serious 
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state of disrepair, with flaking paint and unattached railings. The windows of this 
building are older aluminum-clad windows and are likely inefficient. The pyramidal 
hipped roof appears to be in good condition with relatively new asphalt shingles. Changes 
to the building include the addition of the front portico, replacement windows, the 
greenhouse addition on the south elevation and the mudroom on the east elevation. 
 
National Register Status:  This building is more than 50 years of age and retains 
integrity of location, setting, design, materials, workmanship, feeling and association 
from the historic district’s period of significance. It possesses a physical and historical 
relationship to the other contributing properties in the University Neighborhood District.  
It is one of only a few remaining Italianate-style homes in Laramie, and is also distinctive 
for its sandstone construction.  Rating: 2; Back Barn: 2. 
 
 

 
319 S. 8th Street, north and west elevations (Annie Hilton, March 2007) 
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319 S. 8th Street, south and west elevations (Annie Hilton, March 2007) 

 

 
319 S. 8th Street, west elevation (Annie Hilton, March 2007) 
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319 S. 8th Street, south and east elevations (Annie Hilton, March 2007) 

 
 

 
319 S. 8th Street, Back Barn, south and east elevations (Mary Humstone, July 2007) 
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WYOMING ARCHITECTURAL INVENTORY FORM 
 
GENERAL INFORMATION 
 
Site Number: 116 
Project Name: Laramie’s University Neighborhood – Inventory of Historic Buildings 
 
Address: 100 S. 9th St. 
County: Albany 
Legal Location (lot, block, addition): East two thirds of Lot 4, Block 180, Original 
Town 
 
Current Name (if applicable): 
Historic Name (if applicable): 
 
Current Use: Single Family Residential Rental 
Historic Use: Single Family Residence 
 
Name of owner: First Street LLC 
Address of owner: 360 Franklin St. Denver, CO 80218 
 
Form Prepared by: Jonas H. Landes 
Date of Survey: 2/26/2007 
 
HISTORICAL INFORMATION 
 
Date of Construction/major modification: 1916; remodeled 1985 (Assessor’s Office) 
 
Architect/Builder: unknown 
 
Historical Background: unknown 
 
Major Bibliographic References: 
Albany County Assessor’s Office 
 
ARCHITECTURAL INFORMATION 
 
Architectural style/type: Colonial Revival 
 
Architectural Description:  
This small (28’ NS x 32’ EW), one-and-a-half-story, square house is stucco sided.  The 
side-gabled house faces east on 9th Street. A large, shed-roofed dormer sheathed in 
shingles extends from the east slope of the roof.  Shingles are also found in the gable 
ends.  Unlike most buildings of this era, this house has no overhangs on the end gables 
and minimal overhangs on the side gables. A tan-brick chimney extends from the north 
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end of the east slope of the roof.  The roof is sheathed in light brown asphalt shingles. 
The building sits on a raised, stuccoed foundation. 
 
The entryway in the south bay is recessed about two feet. The molding around the 
recessed entryway is classically inspired with simple pilasters supporting an entablature 
motif.  The original wood door has a large light flanked by vertical, rectangular panels, 
all above three long, vertical panels. Surrounding the door are four-light sidelights.  
 
The north bay of the façade on the first floor has a paired window with 6-over-1, double-
hung sash.  The windows feature a large lower sash and a much smaller upper sash with 
two rows of three horizontal lights.  The shed-roofed dormer has two paired, 
symmetrically placed, standard 6-over-1, double-hung wood windows. The basement has 
replacement 1-over-1, double-hung windows. 
 
Ancillary structures: 
Garage (c. 1916): The small (12’ NS x 20’ EW), west-facing garage is sheathed in 
clapboard siding. Shingle work is found in the gable ends. Exposed rafter tails and knee 
braces are also evident beneath the eaves. The offset, one-bay garage door is wood and 
likely original.  
 
EVALUATION 
Physical Integrity: This building has been well maintained. Although the Assessor’s 
records indicate a remodeling in 1985, it is not obvious what was done to the building.  
The shed-roofed dormer looks somewhat out of place but, the windows are contemporary 
to early 20th century houses. The only unmistakable alterations to the structure are the 
replacement vinyl windows found in the raised basement. 
 
National Register Status: This building is more than 50 years of age and retains 
integrity of location, setting, design, materials, workmanship, feeling and association 
from the historic district’s period of significance. This building is unusual in the simple 
fact that although it is across the street from campus, it has not been converted to multiple 
apartment units for UW students. Rating: 2. Garage: 2.  
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100 S. 9th St., east façade (Jonas Landes, February 2007) 

 

 
100 S. 9th St., north and east elevations (Jonas Landes, February 2007) 
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100 S. 9th St., Garage, east elevation (Jonas Landes, February 2007) 
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WYOMING ARCHITECTURAL INVENTORY FORM 
 
GENERAL INFORMATION 
 
Site Number: 117 
Project Name: Laramie’s University Neighborhood – Inventory of Historic Buildings 
 
Address: 110 S. 9th  
County: Albany 
Legal Location (lot, block, addition): Lot 3, Block 180, Original Town 
 
Current Name (if applicable): Canterbury House 
Historic Name (if applicable): Canterbury House 
 
Current Use: Episcopal Ministry 
Historic Use: Episcopal Ministry 
 
Name of owner: St. Matthews Cathedral  
Address of owner: 110 S. 9th St., Laramie, WY 82070 
 
Form Prepared by: Jonas H. Landes 
Date of Survey: 2/26/2007 
 
HISTORICAL INFORMATION 
 
Date of Construction/major modification: 1960s 
 
Architect/Builder: unknown 
 
Historical Background: unknown 
 
Major Bibliographic References: 
Albany County Assessor’s Office 
Knight, Judy. Researcher for the Laramie Plains Museum. Notes compiled 2004. 
 
ARCHITECTURAL INFORMATION 
 
Architectural style/type: Ranch 
 
Architectural Description: This one-story, brick, ranch-style building (50’ NS x 15’ 
EW with a 25’ EW x 15’ NS wing projecting west) was constructed as a ministry for the 
Episcopal Church. The building is T-shaped with the top of the T facing east onto 9th St. 
The roof is sheathed in red/white asphalt shingles and the foundation is poured concrete. 
 
Ancillary structures: N/A 
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EVALUATION 
Physical Integrity: This building has been well maintained. No significant alterations 
have occurred to the structure.  
 
National Register Status: This building is less than 50 years of age. Rating: 0. 

 

 
110 S. 9th St., east elevation (Jonas Landes, February 2007) 
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added to the building. The building materials are not similar and there was no attempt to 
match the historic character of the building with this addition. The east elevation also 
features an addition in the form of a white metal fire escape. This elevation is 
symmetrical with three bays.      
   
Ancillary structures (name and brief description): N/A 
 
EVALUATION 
Physical Integrity: There have been significant changes to this structure that 
compromise its historic integrity, including the metal dormer addition on the south 
elevation, the metal roof, and the replacement windows.  Original details such as the four 
prominent chimneys have been removed, as well as a balustrade that can be seen in the 
historic photograph below. In addition, the paint on the metal cornice and capitals is 
cracked.  However, the brick and stone appear to be in good condition, with few visible 
cracks. 
  
National Register Status: This structure is more than 50 years old, and in spite of 
additions and other changes it retains its overall historic character. It retains integrity of 
location, design, materials, workmanship, feeling and association from the early 1900s.  
It possesses a physical and historical relationship to the other contributing properties in 
the University Neighborhood District, and as a neighborhood school has an important 
place in the history of the District.  It is also significant as a rare example of adaptive use 
of an old school building in Wyoming.  Rating: 2.   
 
 

 
The Laramie High School in 1914. http://www.wyomingtalesandtrails.com/photos6a.html 
 


